

1.1 **Department of Natural Resources**

1.2 **Proposed Expedited Permanent Game and Fish Rules Relating to Wildlife**

1.3 **6230.0100 DEFINITIONS.**

1.4 [For text of subps 1 and 2, see M.R.]

1.5 Subp. 3. **Waterfowl season.** "Waterfowl season" means any day that there is an open  
1.6 season for the taking of migratory waterfowl.

1.7 **6232.0200 DEFINITIONS.**

1.8 [For text of subps 1 to 4, see M.R.]

1.9 Subp. 4a. **Deer permit area.** "Deer permit area" means an area of the state consisting  
1.10 of one or more deer registration blocks. Deer permit areas open for taking legal bucks and  
1.11 antlerless deer during the ~~regular firearms~~ deer season are defined as follows:

1.12 A. "intensive deer permit area" and "managed deer permit area" means a deer  
1.13 permit area where taking deer of either sex is authorized ~~by a regular firearms license and~~  
1.14 ~~where multiple bonus permits are authorized~~ within bag limits for each area as prescribed  
1.15 by the commissioner;

1.16 ~~B. "managed deer permit area" means a deer permit area where taking deer~~  
1.17 ~~of either sex is authorized by a regular firearms license and where bonus permits are~~  
1.18 ~~authorized; and~~

1.19 ~~C.~~ B. "lottery deer permit area" means a deer permit area where taking:

1.20 (1) legal bucks is authorized by a regular firearms or muzzleloader license  
1.21 ~~and taking;~~

1.22 (2) antlerless deer is authorized by an either-sex permit; and

1.23 (3) either-sex deer is authorized by an archery deer license; and

2.1 C. "hunter choice deer permit area" means a deer permit area where taking one  
2.2 deer of either sex is authorized.

2.3 [For text of subps 5 to 11, see M.R.]

2.4 Subp. 12. **Either-sex permit.** "Either-sex permit" is a permit obtained through the  
2.5 procedure described in part 6232.1800 that allows for taking an either-sex deer during the  
2.6 firearm or muzzleloader season provided the individual possesses a license for that season.

2.7 **6232.0300 GENERAL RESTRICTIONS FOR TAKING DEER.**

2.8 Subpart 1. **Season options.** A firearm deer hunter may purchase a firearm license  
2.9 valid for the regular firearms deer season or a youth firearms license. A muzzleloader deer  
2.10 hunter may purchase a muzzleloader license valid for the muzzleloader season or a youth  
2.11 muzzleloader license. For the regular firearm season, a hunter must select either the A  
2.12 or B season and this option will be printed on the license at the time of purchase. A  
2.13 person may only hunt deer by firearms within the season option indicated on the person's  
2.14 firearm license, except:

- 2.15 A. as prescribed in part 6232.1970, subpart 2; ~~and~~
- 2.16 B. a firearm license for any season option is valid in:
- 2.17 (1) the Metropolitan Deer Management Zone under part 6232.4700,
- 2.18 subpart 158; and
- 2.19 (2) ~~deer permit areas open for early antlerless hunting; and~~
- 2.20 (3) ~~the special bovine tuberculosis area (deer permit area 101).~~

2.21 C. youth firearm license holders may hunt deer in both the statewide A and  
2.22 late southeast B seasons.

2.23 [For text of subp 2, see M.R.]

3.1 Subp. 3. **Party hunting.** A party is a group of two or more licensed deer hunters  
3.2 who are afield hunting together and are all using firearms or all using archery equipment.  
3.3 A member of a party may kill a legal buck or antlerless deer for another member of the  
3.4 party who has an unused tag valid for that deer, except:

3.5 A. as provided by Minnesota Statutes, section 97B.301; and

3.6 B. in all 300 series deer permit areas as prescribed in part 6232.1300, subpart  
3.7 3, where unused tags can be used on antlerless deer only.

3.8 A mixed-weapons group is considered two separate parties. ~~Multizone buck licensees~~  
3.9 ~~may party hunt with regular firearms licensees.~~ Persons issued permits under Minnesota  
3.10 Statutes, section 97B.055, subdivision 3, who are hunting in a lottery deer permit area and  
3.11 do not have an either-sex permit may not tag antlerless deer for another member of the party.

3.12 [For text of subps 4 and 5, see M.R.]

3.13 Subp. 6. **License purchase and validation.**

3.14 [For text of item A, see M.R.]

3.15 B. ~~At the time~~ Before a deer is ~~tagged at~~ moved from the site of kill, ~~the tag~~  
3.16 ~~must be validated~~ the person tagging the deer must validate the tag. Validation consists of  
3.17 using a knife or similar sharp object to cut out or a pen to indelibly mark the appropriate  
3.18 notches on the tag indicating:

3.19 [For text of subitems (1) to (3), see M.R.]

3.20 [For text of subp 7, see M.R.]

3.21 Subp. 8. **Bag limit.** A person may not tag more than one legal buck per calendar  
3.22 year using any combination of licenses. A person may not tag more than one deer during a  
3.23 license year by any method, except as authorized in items A to H G.

3.24 [For text of items A to C, see M.R.]

4.1 D. Except as provided in items E, F, ~~and G~~, the total bag limits by deer  
4.2 permit area are as follows:

4.3 (1) the total bag limit for lottery, hunter choice, and youth-only antlerless  
4.4 deer permit areas is one deer;

4.5 [For text of subitems (2) to (4), see M.R.]

4.6 [For text of items E and F, see M.R.]

4.7 ~~G. Hunters hunting in the special bovine tuberculosis area (deer permit area~~  
4.8 ~~101) may take and tag an unlimited number of deer.~~

4.9 H. G. Muzzleloader and archery deer hunters hunting in deer permit areas 300  
4.10 to 399 may take deer under the most liberal bag limits prescribed for the deer permit area.

4.11 [For text of subp 9, see M.R.]

4.12 **6232.0350 RESTRICTIONS FOR TAKING DEER; 300 SERIES DEER PERMIT**  
4.13 **AREAS.**

4.14 Notwithstanding part 6232.0200, subpart 6, in all 300 series deer permit areas, a legal  
4.15 buck is defined as a deer with a minimum of four antler points on at least one antler. Bucks  
4.16 with fewer antler points than the minimum defined points are protected and not legal for  
4.17 harvest. Youth hunters, age 10 to 17, are exempt from this part.

4.18 **6232.0400 REGISTRATION OF DEER.**

4.19 Subpart 1. [Repealed, 20 SR 2287]

4.20 Subp. 2. **Registration requirements.**

4.21 A. Persons tagging a deer must present the deer for registration at a designated  
4.22 deer registration station or agent of the commissioner and obtain a big game possession  
4.23 tag or connect to online or telephone DNR harvest registration systems and follow the  
4.24 instructions to obtain a registration confirmation number. All information provided by a

5.1 person registering deer must be accurate and include the correct date, sex and age of the  
5.2 deer, and permit area in which the animal was harvested.

5.3 [For text of items B to D, see M.R.]

5.4 [For text of subps 3 to 5, see M.R.]

5.5 **6232.1750 DEER PERMIT AREA DESIGNATION.**

5.6 The commissioner shall annually designate all deer permit areas as intensive,  
5.7 managed, hunter choice, or lottery and shall establish permit quotas for taking deer of  
5.8 either sex in lottery deer permit areas.

5.9 **6232.1800 EITHER-SEX PERMITS AND PREFERENCE DRAWINGS.**

5.10 Subpart 1. **Procedures for applying for an either-sex permit.** Residents and  
5.11 nonresidents are eligible for either-sex permits. A person may not apply for an either-sex  
5.12 deer permit without first purchasing a firearms or muzzleloader deer license. The  
5.13 application may be made for only one of the deer permit areas described in this part,  
5.14 and must be for the season option on the applicant's deer license. A person may submit  
5.15 more than one application for an either-sex permit. ~~A person may apply for an either-sex~~  
5.16 ~~permit or a special hunt permit, but not both.~~

5.17 The application deadline is the first Thursday following Labor Day.

5.18 [For text of subps 2 and 3, see M.R.]

5.19 **6232.2800 GENERAL REGULATIONS FOR TAKING BEARS.**

5.20 [For text of subp 1, see 37 SR 1478]

5.21 [For text of subps 2 to 4, see M.R.]

5.22 Subp. 5. **Skinning and quartering bears.** Bears may be skinned, quartered, or  
5.23 further divided prior to transportation and registration, but all edible meat and all other  
5.24 parts of the bear, except the entrails, must be retained by the hunter ~~must be presented for~~  
5.25 until registration at the same time is completed.

6.1 Subp. 6. **Registration requirements and sample collection.**

6.2 A. Every person taking a bear must present it for registration:

6.3 (1) at a designated bear registration station or, ~~must connect to an online~~  
6.4 or telephone Department of Natural Resources harvest registration system and follow  
6.5 the instructions; or

6.6 (2) in the case of a nuisance bear authorization, to the authorizing wildlife  
6.7 manager or conservation officer, ~~within 48 hours after taking and obtain a big game~~  
6.8 ~~possession tag. Prior to transporting the bear from the registration station, the possession~~  
6.9 ~~tag must be attached to the bear in the same manner as the site tag provided with the license.~~

6.10 B. Bear must be registered according to item A:

6.11 (1) before the bear is processed either privately or commercially; and

6.12 (2) within 48 hours after taking.

6.13 C. A person registering bear must:

6.14 (1) obtain a big game possession tag at a bear registration station; or

6.15 (2) obtain a registration confirmation number by using an online or  
6.16 telephone Department of Natural Resources harvest registration system.

6.17 D. Registration agents are not required to inspect bear at registration stations.

6.18 E. A person may not process a bear unless it has been registered as evidenced  
6.19 by a possession tag or registration confirmation number.

6.20 Subp. 7. **Sample collection.** Within 48 hours after the bear season closes, a person  
6.21 taking a bear must submit samples to the department in the envelope provided at bear  
6.22 registration stations according to instructions of the department as printed on the envelope.  
6.23 It is the responsibility of each person taking a bear to mail the envelope to the department,  
6.24 except in those cases where a bear registration station is collecting the samples.

7.1 [For text of subp 8, see M.R.]

7.2 **6232.2900 BEAR PERMIT PROCEDURES.**

7.3 [For text of subp 1, see M.R.]

7.4 Subp. 2. **Drawings.** Drawings will be conducted by the department to determine  
7.5 those eligible to purchase a bear license within the bear quota areas.

7.6 [For text of items A and B, see M.R.]

7.7 C. In quota areas with fewer applicants than available licenses or licenses not  
7.8 purchased as described in subpart 9, the remaining available licenses may be first offered  
7.9 to ~~unsuccessful applicants~~ any eligible person on a first-come, first-served basis beginning  
7.10 at 12:00 p.m. ~~on the first Wednesday following the deadline in subpart 9~~ three business  
7.11 days after August 1.

7.12 D. To obtain a remaining available license, an eligible person must apply  
7.13 individually and in person at an electronic license system agent location or individually  
7.14 through the ELS-Internet ~~or ELS-Telephone~~ system.

7.15 ~~E. Any remaining available licenses not purchased by unsuccessful applicants~~  
7.16 ~~may then be issued to any eligible person as prescribed by the commissioner on a~~  
7.17 ~~first-come, first-served basis beginning at 12:00 p.m. on the second Wednesday following~~  
7.18 ~~the deadline in subpart 9. Individuals who purchase these remaining available licenses~~  
7.19 ~~retain their accumulated preference.~~

7.20 [For text of subps 3 to 8, see M.R.]

7.21 Subp. 9. **Successful bear hunt applicant deadline to purchase license.** A person  
7.22 selected through the bear permit drawing must purchase the license ~~on or before the Friday~~  
7.23 ~~nearest July 31~~ by August 1. Any licenses not purchased by the deadline shall be issued  
7.24 following the drawing procedures in subpart 2.

8.1 **6232.3200 BAIT STATIONS AND GARBAGE DUMPS.**

8.2 [For text of subp 1, see M.R.]

8.3 Subp. 2. **Registration of bait station.** A person may not establish a bear bait station  
8.4 without registering the site as provided in this subpart.

8.5 [For text of item A, see M.R.]

8.6 B. The form must be mailed to the Division of Enforcement no later than the  
8.7 next postal service day or completed on a Web site approved by the commissioner within  
8.8 24 hours following establishment of the bear bait station.

8.9 [For text of subps 3 to 7, see M.R.]

8.10 **6232.4400 GENERAL REGULATIONS FOR TAKING ELK.**

8.11 [For text of subp 1, see M.R.]

8.12 Subp. 2. **Party hunting.** Licensees may not hunt elk without having the unused seal  
8.13 in their possession. Licensed parties with an unused seal in their possession may ~~not~~ assist  
8.14 other licensed parties in taking elk, but may not take or tag elk for another party.

8.15 [For text of subps 3 to 7, see M.R.]

8.16 **6232.4600 ELK ZONES.**

8.17 [For text of subps 1 and 2, see M.R.]

8.18 Subp. 3. **Kittson County Central Elk Zone.** The Kittson County Central Elk Zone  
8.19 consists of that portion of the state lying within the following described boundary:

8.20 Beginning at the intersection of County State-Aid Highway (CSAH) 1 and State  
8.21 Trunk Highway (STH) 175; thence north along CSAH 1 to 380th Street; thence  
8.22 east to 250th Avenue; thence north along 250th Avenue to the section line between  
8.23 Sections 29 and 30, Township 164 North, Range 48 West; thence north on the section  
8.24 line between Sections 29 and 30, Township 164 North, Range 48 West, to the United  
8.25 States/Canadian border; thence east long the United States/Canadian border to the  
8.26 northeast corner of Section 30, Township 164 North, Range 46 West; thence south



9.1 along the east section line of Section 30, Township 164 North, Range 46 West, to  
9.2 370th Avenue; thence south along 370th Avenue to County Road (CR) 51; thence  
9.3 south along CR 51 to CSAH 4; thence west along CSAH 4 to State Ditch 85 (330th  
9.4 Street); thence east along State Ditch 85 to State Ditch 72 (310th Street); thence  
9.5 east along State Ditch 72 to 480th Avenue (county line); thence south along 480th  
9.6 Avenue to 220th Street; thence west along 220th Street to CSAH 10; thence west  
9.7 along CSAH 10 to U.S. Highway 59; thence north along U.S. Highway 59 to STH  
9.8 175; thence west along STH 175 to the point of beginning.

9.9 Subp. 4. **Kittson County Northeast Elk Zone.** The Kittson County Northeast Elk  
9.10 Zone consists of that portion of the state lying within the following described boundary:

9.11 Beginning at the intersection of County State-Aid Highway (CSAH) 4 and County  
9.12 Road (CR) 51; thence north along CR 51 to 370th Avenue; thence north along 370th  
9.13 Avenue to the west section line of Section 29, Township 164 North, Range 46 West;  
9.14 thence north along the west section of Section 29, Township 164 North, Range 46 West,  
9.15 to the United States/Canadian border; thence east along the United States/Canadian  
9.16 border to the northeast corner of Section 25, Township 164 North, Range 45 West;  
9.17 thence south along the eastern section line of Section 25, Township 164 North, Range  
9.18 45 West to 480th Avenue; thence south along 480th Avenue to State Ditch 72 (310th  
9.19 Street); thence west along State Ditch 72 to State Ditch 85 (330th Street); thence west  
9.20 along State Ditch 85 to CSAH 4; thence north along CSAH 4 to the point of beginning.

9.21 **6234.1700 TAKING FISHER AND PINE MARTEN.**

9.22 [For text of subps 1 and 2, see M.R.]

9.23 Subp. 3. **Validation and tagging.** Each pine marten or fisher must be validated on  
9.24 a site validation coupon issued by the state. The person taking the animal must validate  
9.25 the coupon at and prior to removing the animal from the kill site. The coupon must be  
9.26 obtained and validated according to part 6234.2600. Pelts and skinned carcasses of fisher  
9.27 and pine marten are subject to the provisions of part 6234.2600.

9.28 [For text of subp 4, see M.R.]

9.29 **6234.2000 TAKING OTTER.**

9.30 [For text of subp 1, see M.R.]

Subp. 2. **Open season and area for otter in South Zone.** ~~Except as provided in subpart 1,~~ Otter may be taken by trapping from 9:00 a.m. on the Saturday nearest October 30 to the Sunday nearest January 6 in the remainder of the state described in part 6234.1000, subpart 4.

[For text of subp 3, see M.R.]

Subp. 4. **Validation and tagging otter.** Each otter must be validated on a site validation coupon issued by the state. The person taking the animal must validate the coupon at and prior to removing the animal from the kill site. The coupon must be obtained and validated according to part 6234.2600. Pelts are subject to the provisions of part 6234.2600.

**6234.2200 USE OF TRAPS.**

[For text of subps 1 to 5, see M.R.]

[For text of subp 5a, see 38 SR 727]

[For text of subps 6 to 11, see M.R.]

Subp. 12. **Authorized agent.** A trapper may authorize, in writing, an agent who possesses all necessary licenses to check, pick up, and reset, at the same site, traps set by the trapper. An authorized agent's agent may remove a trapped animal's animal and, if the animal removed from the trap is required to be tagged validated as provided by part 6234.2600, must affix their own tag to the animal validate the agent's own site validation coupon as prescribed at and prior to removing the animal from the site of the kill.

[For text of subps 13 to 16, see 38 SR 727]

**6234.2400 SPECIAL RESTRICTIONS ON USE OF SNARES.**

[For text of subp 1, see M.R.]

11.1 Subp. 2. **Farmland Furbearer Zone restrictions.** In the Farmland Furbearer Zone,  
11.2 a person may use snares as follows:

11.3 A. ~~from April 1 to November 30~~ the Friday nearest October 26, a person may  
11.4 not set, place, or operate any snare except as a waterset in that part of the Farmland  
11.5 Furbearer Zone lying within the North Mink/Muskrat/Beaver/Otter Zone, described in  
11.6 part 6234.1000, subpart 3;

11.7 B. from the Saturday nearest October 26 to March 31, a person may not set,  
11.8 place, or operate any snare on public lands, including on the surface of frozen water  
11.9 within public lands, on road rights-of-way, or in fence lines along road rights-of-way,  
11.10 except as a waterset in that part of the Farmland Furbearer Zone lying within the North  
11.11 Mink/Muskrat/Beaver/Otter Zone, described in part 6234.1000, subpart 3;

11.12 C. from April 1 to the Friday nearest October 30, a person may not set, place, or  
11.13 operate any snare except as a waterset in that part of the Farmland Furbearer Zone lying  
11.14 outside the North Mink/Muskrat/Beaver/Otter Zone, described in part 6234.1000, subpart 3

11.15 B. ~~D~~ from December 1 the Saturday nearest October 30 to March 31, a person  
11.16 may not set, place, or operate any snare on public lands, including on the surface of frozen  
11.17 water within public lands, on road rights-of-way, or in fence lines along road rights-of-way,  
11.18 except as a waterset in that part of the Farmland Furbearer Zone lying outside the North  
11.19 Mink/Muskrat/Beaver/Otter Zone, described in part 6234.1000, subpart 3.

11.20 [For text of subps 3 to 7, see M.R.]

11.21 [For text of subps 8 and 9, see 38 SR 727]

11.22 [For text of subps 10 and 11, see M.R.]

11.23 **6234.2600 PELT TAGGING AND REGISTRATION.**

11.24 [For text of subps 1 and 2, see M.R.]

12.1 Subp. 3. **Registration of pelts.** The pelt of each bobcat, fisher, pine marten, and  
12.2 otter ~~and the whole carcass of each bobcat~~ must be presented, along with completed site  
12.3 validation coupons for each fisher, pine marten, or otter, by the person taking it, to a state  
12.4 wildlife manager designee for registration before the pelt is sold and before the pelt is  
12.5 transported out of the state, but in no event more than 48 hours after the season closes for  
12.6 each species, respectively. The entire carcass of bobcat and the entire head of pine marten  
12.7 and fisher must be surrendered to the state wildlife manager designee. The pelt of bobcat,  
12.8 otter, fisher, and pine marten must have been removed from the carcass.

12.9 Subp. 4. **Prohibition on validation or tagging animals not personally taken.** A  
12.10 person may not validate a site validation coupon or affix any tag or seal to the pelt or  
12.11 carcass of any animal that the person did not take or is not authorized to take.

12.12 Subp. 5. **Requirement for tags and seals to remain affixed.** Registration tags or  
12.13 seals must remain affixed to the raw pelt until the pelt is tanned or mounted.

12.14 Subp. 6. **Site validation coupons.**

12.15 A. Fisher, otter, and pine marten site validation coupons may be obtained at no  
12.16 cost through the electronic licensing system.

12.17 B. The site validation coupon is part of the trapper's license to take fisher, otter,  
12.18 and pine marten and must be in the trapper's possession while taking and transporting  
12.19 these species.

12.20 C. Site validation coupons are not transferable.

12.21 Subp. 7. **Validating coupons.** Site validation coupons must be notched with a knife  
12.22 or other sharp instrument in the appropriate locations indicating the species for fisher or  
12.23 marten, month, date, and time (a.m./p.m.) the animal was taken. The coupon must be  
12.24 validated at and prior to removing the animal from the kill site.

13.1 **6236.0300 TURKEY HUNT DRAWING.**

13.2 Subpart 1. **Spring license application drawings.**

13.3 A. Applications for all spring hunts must be made according to this part and  
13.4 according to application instructions provided by the commissioner. Each person must  
13.5 apply at an electronic license system agent or the Department of Natural Resources  
13.6 License Center. Drawings will be conducted by the department to determine persons who  
13.7 will be eligible to purchase licenses for each season. The drawings will be subject to the  
13.8 quotas established by the commissioner. Preference in the respective drawings is given  
13.9 to applicants based upon the number of times they have correctly applied for a license  
13.10 for that hunt but have been unsuccessful. A person selected by the drawings is eligible to  
13.11 purchase a license to hunt turkey. Upon issuance of a turkey license for the spring ~~or fall~~  
13.12 season, all accumulated preference for that season is lost, except as provided in subpart 6.

13.13 B. No application is needed to purchase a fall turkey license.

13.14 Subp. 2. **Participation in application drawings.** ~~Applicants may complete an~~  
13.15 ~~application for either the spring or fall turkey hunt or both. A person may not apply more~~  
13.16 ~~than once for a hunt, whether as an individual or as a member of a group. Qualifying~~  
13.17 ~~individuals may apply for the resident landowner-tenant turkey drawing. All of the~~  
13.18 ~~information in items A to H G must be supplied on the application forms.~~

13.19 [For text of items A and B, see M.R.]

13.20 ~~C. A resident or nonresident applicant age 12 to 15 by the opening day of the~~  
13.21 ~~season may provide one of the above numbers or may participate in the drawing without~~  
13.22 ~~a number by providing the applicant's full first, middle, and last name and date of birth.~~  
13.23 ~~Youthful applicants who do not provide a number will be placed into the drawing using a~~  
13.24 ~~number generated by the department.~~

14.1 ~~D. C.~~ Up to four persons desiring to hunt together as a group may apply as a  
14.2 group. Group applications shall either all be selected or none selected. All group members  
14.3 must apply for the same wild turkey permit areas and time periods. The preference rating  
14.4 of applicants who apply as a group shall be determined by the individual in the group  
14.5 with the lowest preference. Group applications may be made up of all general or all  
14.6 landowner-tenant applications, but not both.

14.7 ~~E. D.~~ A person who applies as a landowner or tenant but does not meet the  
14.8 definition as provided by this part will be ineligible for that season's drawings.

14.9 ~~F. E.~~ The application deadlines are as follows: deadline for the

14.10 ~~(1) spring season: is the second Friday in January; and~~

14.11 ~~(2) fall season: the last Friday in July.~~

14.12 ~~G. F.~~ Youth age 17 and younger may purchase a wild turkey hunting license  
14.13 to hunt ~~one~~ all eight spring turkey season time periods. A wild turkey hunting license  
14.14 under this item is separate from the normal lottery process and is valid for hunting in  
14.15 any wild turkey permit area ~~during an established time period. The youth hunter must~~  
14.16 ~~select a time period.~~

14.17 ~~H. G.~~ A person who has not applied for a wild turkey license through the lottery  
14.18 or who applied for a license and was unsuccessful in the lottery may purchase a wild  
14.19 turkey hunting license to hunt the spring turkey season during ~~either the~~ fourth, fifth, sixth,  
14.20 seventh, or eighth time period. A wild turkey hunting license under this item is separate  
14.21 from the normal lottery process. Firearms hunters who purchase a license under this item  
14.22 must choose and hunt in one time period. Archery hunters who purchase a license under  
14.23 this item may hunt throughout the fourth, fifth, sixth, seventh, and eighth time periods.

14.24 (1) Turkey lottery preference points shall not be reduced for a person  
14.25 purchasing a license under this item.

(2) A person may take only one bearded turkey ~~in a~~ during the entire spring turkey season regardless of whether the hunter purchased a license through the lottery system or as provided in this item.

[For text of subps 3 to 6, see M.R.]

#### **6236.0400 OBTAINING LICENSE.**

The following provisions apply to persons who have applied for a turkey license:

[For text of items A and B, see M.R.]

C. A person may purchase a fall turkey license without an application. A turkey permit area must be selected.

#### **6236.0810 WILD TURKEY PERMIT AREA DESCRIPTIONS.**

Subpart 1. Designation. Wild turkey permit areas are ~~comprised of registration blocks with the same numbers, as established in part 6232.4700,~~ except as follows: designated and described by the permit area numbers and boundary descriptions in this part.

~~A. wild turkey permit area 425 consists of Registration Blocks 425 and 435;~~

~~B. wild turkey permit area 451 consists of Registration Blocks 451, 452, and 453; and~~

~~C. wild turkey permit area 454 consists of Registration Blocks 454 and 455.~~

Subp. 2. Permit area 501. Permit area 501 consists of that portion of the state lying within the following described boundary:

Beginning at the intersection of the southern and eastern boundaries of the state; thence along the southern boundary to U.S. Highway 63, Fillmore County; thence along U.S. Highway 63 to State Trunk Highway (STH) 30, Olmsted County; thence along STH 30 to County State-Aid Highway (CSAH) 13, Olmsted County; thence along CSAH 13 to STH 57, Dodge County; thence along STH 57 to U.S. Highway 52; thence along U.S. Highway 52 to STH 19; thence along STH 19 to the west bank of the Little Cannon River; thence along the west bank of the Little Cannon River to the north bank of the Cannon River; thence along the north bank of the Cannon

16.1 River to U.S. Highway 61; thence along U.S. Highway 61 to U.S. Highway 63;  
16.2 thence along U.S. Highway 63 to the eastern boundary of the state; thence along the  
16.3 eastern boundary of the state to the point of beginning.

16.4 Subp. 3. **Permit area 502.** Permit area 502 consists of that portion of the state lying  
16.5 within the following described boundary:

16.6 Beginning at the intersection of State Trunk Highway (STH) 42 and County State-Aid  
16.7 Highway (CSAH) 4, Wabasha County; thence along CSAH 4 to CSAH 10, Olmsted  
16.8 County; thence along CSAH 10 to CSAH 9, Olmsted County; thence along CSAH 9  
16.9 to CSAH 22, Winona County; thence along CSAH 22 to STH 74; thence along STH  
16.10 74 to U.S. Highway 14; thence along U.S. Highway 14 to CSAH 33, Winona County;  
16.11 thence along CSAH 33 to STH 248; thence along STH 248 to CSAH 31, Winona  
16.12 County; thence along CSAH 31 to CSAH 28, Winona County; thence along CSAH  
16.13 28 to CSAH 25, Winona County; thence along CSAH 25 to U.S. Highway 61; thence  
16.14 along U.S. Highway 61 to CSAH 14, Wabasha County; thence along CSAH 14 to  
16.15 STH 42; thence along STH 42 to the point of beginning.

16.16 Subp. 4. **Permit area 503.** Permit area 503 consists of that portion of the state lying  
16.17 within the following described boundary:

16.18 Beginning at the intersection of the southern boundary of the state and U.S. Highway  
16.19 63, Fillmore County; thence along the southern boundary of the state to State Trunk  
16.20 Highway (STH) 22, Faribault County; thence along STH 22 to County State-Aid  
16.21 Highway (CSAH) 29, Faribault County; thence along CSAH 29 to CSAH 3, Waseca  
16.22 County; thence along CSAH 3 to STH 30; thence along STH 30 to STH 22, Blue  
16.23 Earth County; thence along STH 22 to U.S. Highway 14; thence along U.S. Highway  
16.24 14 to STH 60, Blue Earth County; thence along STH 60 to CSAH 26, Blue Earth  
16.25 County; thence along CSAH 26 to CSAH 15, Le Sueur County; thence along CSAH  
16.26 15 to STH 99, Le Sueur County; thence along STH 99 to CSAH 11, Le Sueur County;  
16.27 thence along CSAH 11 to CSAH 26, Le Sueur County; thence along CSAH 26 to  
16.28 CSAH 11, Le Sueur County; thence along CSAH 11 to STH 19, Le Sueur County;  
16.29 thence along STH 19 to Interstate Highway 35; thence along Interstate Highway 35 to  
16.30 CSAH 70, Scott County; thence along CSAH 70 to CSAH 23, Dakota County; thence  
16.31 along CSAH 23 to STH 50, Dakota County; thence along STH 50 to STH 3, Dakota  
16.32 County; thence along STH 3 to CSAH 66, Dakota County; thence along CSAH 66  
16.33 to U.S. Highway 52; thence along U.S. Highway 52 to CSAH 46, Dakota County;  
16.34 thence along CSAH 46 to CSAH 47, Dakota County; thence along CSAH 47 to U.S.  
16.35 Highway 61; thence along U.S. Highway 61 to U.S. Highway 10; thence along U.S.  
16.36 Highway 10 to the east boundary of the state; thence along the east boundary of the  
16.37 state to Lock and Dam 3 and CSAH 18, Goodhue County; thence along CSAH 18 to



17.1 U.S. Highway 61; thence along U.S. Highway 61 to the Cannon River; thence along  
17.2 the north bank of the Cannon River to its confluence with the Little Cannon River;  
17.3 thence along the west bank of the Little Cannon River to STH 19, Goodhue County;  
17.4 thence along STH 19 to U.S. Highway 52; thence along U.S. Highway 52 to STH 57;  
17.5 thence along STH 57 to CSAH 13, Dodge County; thence along CSAH 13 to STH 30,  
17.6 Dodge County; thence along STH 30 to U.S. Highway 63, Olmsted County; thence  
17.7 along U.S. Highway 63 to the point of beginning.

17.8 Subp. 5. **Permit area 504.** Permit area 504 consists of that portion of the state lying  
17.9 within the following described boundary:

17.10 Beginning at the intersection of the southern boundary of the state and State Trunk  
17.11 Highway (STH) 22; thence along the southern boundary of the state to the western  
17.12 boundary of the state; thence along the western boundary of the state to County  
17.13 State-Aid Highway (CSAH) 24, Lac qui Parle County; thence along CSAH 24 to U.S.  
17.14 Highway 75, Lac qui Parle County; thence along U.S. Highway 75 to CSAH 28, Lac  
17.15 qui Parle County; thence along CSAH 28 to STH 119; thence along STH 119 to CSAH  
17.16 20, Lac qui Parle County; thence along CSAH 20 to CSAH 31, Lac qui Parle County;  
17.17 thence along CSAH 31 to U.S. Highway 212, Lac qui Parle County; thence along U.S.  
17.18 Highway 212 to CSAH 19, Lac qui Parle County; thence along CSAH 19 to CSAH 8,  
17.19 Yellow Medicine County; thence along CSAH 8 to STH 67, Yellow Medicine County;  
17.20 thence along STH 67 to CSAH 43, Yellow Medicine County; thence along CSAH  
17.21 43 to STH 23, Yellow Medicine County; thence along STH 23 to CSAH 2, Yellow  
17.22 Medicine County; thence along CSAH 2 to STH 67, Yellow Medicine County; thence  
17.23 along STH 67 to CSAH 1, Yellow Medicine County; thence along CSAH 1 to CSAH 9,  
17.24 Redwood County; thence along CSAH 9 to STH 273, Redwood County; thence along  
17.25 STH 273 to STH 19, Redwood County; thence along STH 19 to STH 67, Redwood  
17.26 County; thence along STH 67 to STH 68; thence along STH 68 to STH 4; thence along  
17.27 STH 4 to CSAH 24, Brown County; thence along CSAH 24 to CSAH 11, Brown  
17.28 County; thence along CSAH 11 to CSAH 20, Brown County; thence along CSAH  
17.29 20 to STH 257; thence along STH 257 to STH 15; thence along STH 15 to CSAH  
17.30 19, Brown County; thence along CSAH 19 to CSAH 22, Blue Earth County; thence  
17.31 along CSAH 22 to CSAH 6, Blue Earth County; thence along CSAH 6 to STH 60;  
17.32 thence along STH 60 to STH 22; thence along STH 22 to STH 30; thence along STH  
17.33 30 to CSAH 3, Waseca County; thence along CSAH 3 to CSAH 29, Faribault County;  
17.34 thence along CSAH 29 to STH 22; thence along STH 22 to the point of beginning.

17.35 Subp. 6. **Permit area 505.** Permit area 505 consists of that portion of the state lying  
17.36 within the following described boundary:

18.1 Beginning at the intersection of the western boundary of the state and County  
18.2 State-Aid Highway (CSAH) 24, Lac qui Parle County; thence along CSAH 24 to U.S.  
18.3 Highway 75, Lac qui Parle County; thence along U.S. Highway 75 to CSAH 28, Lac  
18.4 qui Parle County; thence along CSAH 28 to State Trunk Highway (STH) 119; thence  
18.5 along STH 119 to CSAH 20, Lac qui Parle County; thence along CSAH 20 to CSAH  
18.6 31, Lac qui Parle County; thence along CSAH 31 to U.S. Highway 212; thence  
18.7 along U.S. Highway 212 to CSAH 19, Lac qui Parle County; thence along CSAH  
18.8 19 to CSAH 8, Yellow Medicine County; thence along CSAH 8 to STH 67, Yellow  
18.9 Medicine County; thence along STH 67 to CSAH 43, Yellow Medicine County;  
18.10 thence along CSAH 43 to STH 23; thence along STH 23 to CSAH 2, Yellow Medicine  
18.11 County; thence along CSAH 2 to STH 67; thence along STH 67 to CSAH 1, Yellow  
18.12 Medicine County; thence along CSAH 1 to CSAH 9, Redwood County; thence  
18.13 along CSAH 9 to STH 273; thence along STH 273 to STH 19, Redwood County;  
18.14 thence along STH 19 to STH 67, Redwood County; thence along STH 67 to STH 68,  
18.15 Redwood County; thence along STH 68 to STH 4, Brown County; thence along STH  
18.16 4 to CSAH 24, Brown County; thence along CSAH 24 to CSAH 11, Brown County;  
18.17 thence along CSAH 11 to CSAH 20, Brown County; thence along CSAH 20 to STH  
18.18 257, Brown County; thence along STH 257 to STH 15, Brown County; thence along  
18.19 STH 15 to CSAH 19, Brown County; thence along CSAH 19 to CSAH 22, Blue Earth  
18.20 County; thence along CSAH 22 to CSAH 6, Blue Earth County; thence along CSAH  
18.21 6 to STH 60, Blue Earth County; thence along STH 60 to CSAH 26, Blue Earth  
18.22 County; thence along CSAH 26 to CSAH 15, Le Sueur County; thence along CSAH  
18.23 15 to STH 99, Le Sueur County; thence along STH 99 to CSAH 11, Le Sueur County;  
18.24 thence along CSAH 11 to CSAH 26, Le Sueur County; thence along CSAH 26 to  
18.25 CSAH 11, Le Sueur County; thence along CSAH 11 to STH 19, Le Sueur County;  
18.26 thence along STH 19 to Interstate Highway 35; thence along Interstate Highway 35 to  
18.27 CSAH 70, Dakota County; thence along CSAH 70 to CSAH 8, Scott County; thence  
18.28 along CSAH 8 to STH 13, Scott County; thence along STH 13 to STH 282; thence  
18.29 along STH 282 to CSAH 9, Scott County; thence along CSAH 9 to Valley View Drive,  
18.30 Scott County; thence along Valley View Drive to 195th Street, Scott County; thence  
18.31 along 195th Street to the east boundary of the Minnesota Valley State Recreation  
18.32 Area; thence along the east and north boundary of said recreation area to the east bank  
18.33 of the Minnesota River; thence along the east bank of the Minnesota River to CSAH  
18.34 45, Carver County; thence along CSAH 45 to CSAH 50, Carver County; thence along  
18.35 CSAH 50 to CSAH 43, Carver County; thence along CSAH 43 to CSAH 11, Carver  
18.36 County; thence along CSAH 11 to STH 5; thence along STH 5 to CSAH 30, Carver  
18.37 County; thence along CSAH 30 to CSAH 92, Hennepin County; thence along CSAH  
18.38 92 to CSAH 6, Hennepin County; thence along CSAH 6 to CSAH 20, Carver County;  
18.39 thence along CSAH 20 to the east bank of the south fork of the Crow River; thence  
18.40 along the east bank of the south fork of the Crow River to STH 25; thence along STH

19.1 25 to STH 5; thence along STH 5 to U.S. Highway 212; thence along U.S. Highway  
19.2 212 to STH 5; thence along STH 5 to CSAH 9, Sibley County; thence along CSAH 9  
19.3 to CSAH 3, Nicollet County; thence along CSAH 3 to STH 22; thence along STH 22  
19.4 to CSAH 1, Nicollet County; thence along CSAH 1 to STH 15; thence along STH 15  
19.5 to STH 19; thence along STH 19 to STH 4; thence along STH 4 to CSAH 4, Renville  
19.6 County; thence along CSAH 4 to U.S. Highway 71; thence along U.S. Highway 71 to  
19.7 U.S. Highway 212; thence along U.S. Highway 212 to STH 23; thence along STH 23  
19.8 to CSAH 4, Chippewa County; thence along CSAH 4 to STH 7; thence along STH 7  
19.9 to STH 29; thence along STH 29 to STH 40; thence along STH 40 to STH 7; thence  
19.10 along STH 7 to CSAH 25, Big Stone County; thence along CSAH 25 to CSAH 10,  
19.11 Big Stone County; thence along CSAH 10 to CSAH 21, Big Stone County; thence  
19.12 along CSAH 21 to STH 28; thence along STH 28 to the western boundary of the state;  
19.13 thence along the western boundary of the state to the point of beginning.

19.14 Subp. 7. **Permit area 506.** Permit area 506 consists of that portion of the state lying  
19.15 within the following described boundary:

19.16 Beginning at the intersection of State Trunk Highway (STH) 28 and the western  
19.17 boundary of the state; thence along the western boundary of the state to U.S. Highway  
19.18 10; thence along U.S. Highway 10 to STH 9; thence along STH 9 to Interstate  
19.19 Highway 94; thence along Interstate Highway 94 to STH 29; thence along STH 29 to  
19.20 STH 104; thence along STH 104 to U.S. Highway 12; thence along U.S. Highway 12  
19.21 to the east bank of the south fork of the Crow River; thence along the east bank of the  
19.22 south fork of the Crow River to STH 25; thence along STH 25 to STH 5; thence along  
19.23 STH 5 to U.S. Highway 212; thence along U.S. Highway 212 to STH 5; thence along  
19.24 STH 5 to County State-Aid Highway (CSAH) 9, Sibley County; thence along CSAH 9  
19.25 to CSAH 3, Nicollet County; thence along CSAH 3 to STH 22; thence along STH 22  
19.26 to CSAH 1, Nicollet County; thence along CSAH 1 to STH 15; thence along STH 15  
19.27 to STH 19; thence along STH 19 to STH 4; thence along STH 4 to CSAH 4, Renville  
19.28 County; thence along CSAH 4 to U.S. Highway 71; thence along U.S. Highway 71 to  
19.29 U.S. Highway 212; thence along U.S. Highway 212 to STH 23; thence along STH 23  
19.30 to CSAH 4, Chippewa County; thence along CSAH 4 to STH 7; thence along STH 7  
19.31 to STH 29; thence along STH 29 to STH 40; thence along STH 40 to STH 7; thence  
19.32 along STH 7 to CSAH 25, Big Stone County; thence along CSAH 25 to CSAH 10,  
19.33 Big Stone County; thence along CSAH 10 to CSAH 21, Big Stone County; thence  
19.34 along CSAH 21 to STH 28; thence along STH 28 to the western boundary of the state;  
19.35 thence along the western boundary of the state to the point of beginning.

19.36 Subp. 8. **Permit area 507.** Permit area 507 consists of that portion of the state lying  
19.37 within the following described boundary:

20.1 Beginning at the intersection of County State-Aid Highway (CSAH) 17, Clearwater  
20.2 County and U.S. Highway 2; thence along U.S. Highway 2 to State Trunk Highway  
20.3 (STH) 92; thence along STH 92 to CSAH 27, Clearwater County; thence along  
20.4 CSAH 27 to the Mahnomen County line; thence along the Mahnomen County line to  
20.5 CSAH 3, Mahnomen County; thence along CSAH 3 to STH 113; thence along STH  
20.6 113 to CSAH 13, Mahnomen County; thence along CSAH 13 to CSAH 21, Becker  
20.7 County; thence along CSAH 21 to CSAH 132, Becker County; thence along CSAH  
20.8 132 to CSAH 26, Becker County; thence along CSAH 26 to U.S. Highway 59; thence  
20.9 along U.S. Highway 59 to U.S. Highway 10; thence along U.S. Highway 10 to STH  
20.10 9; thence along STH 9 to Interstate Highway 94; thence along Interstate Highway  
20.11 94 to STH 29; thence along STH 29 to STH 104; thence along STH 104 to U.S.  
20.12 Highway 12; thence along U.S. Highway 12 to the south fork of the Crow River;  
20.13 thence along the Crow River to its confluence with the Mississippi River; thence  
20.14 along the Mississippi River to U.S. Highway 169; thence along U.S. Highway 169 to  
20.15 STH 95; thence along STH 95 to STH 23; thence along STH 23 to the Mississippi  
20.16 River; thence along the east bank of the Mississippi River to the confluence with the  
20.17 Crow Wing River; thence along the north bank of the Crow Wing River to CSAH  
20.18 36, Cass County; thence westerly and northerly along CSAH 36 to STH 210; thence  
20.19 along STH 210 to CSAH 18, Cass County; thence along CSAH 18 to CSAH 77, Cass  
20.20 County; thence along CSAH 77 to CSAH 15, Cass County; thence along CSAH 15 to  
20.21 County Road (CR) 107, Cass County; thence along CR 107 to the city limits of Lake  
20.22 Shore, Cass County; thence along the south, west, and north boundaries of the city  
20.23 limits of Lake Shore to CSAH 29, Cass County; thence along CSAH 29 to STH 371;  
20.24 thence along STH 371 to STH 200; thence along STH 200 to STH 371; thence along  
20.25 STH 371 to U.S. Highway 2; thence along U.S. Highway 2 to the point of beginning.

20.26 Subp. 9. **Permit area 508.** Permit area 508 consists of that portion of the state lying  
20.27 within the following described boundary:

20.28 Beginning at the intersection of U.S. Highway 2 and State Trunk Highway (STH)  
20.29 371; thence along U.S. Highway 2 to STH 6; thence along STH 6 to STH 200; thence  
20.30 along STH 200 to U.S. Highway 2; thence along U.S. Highway 2 to the eastern  
20.31 boundary of the state; thence along the eastern boundary of the state to STH 95;  
20.32 thence along STH 95 to STH 23; thence along STH 23 to the Mississippi River;  
20.33 thence along the east bank of the Mississippi River to the confluence with the Crow  
20.34 Wing River; thence along the north bank of the Crow Wing River to County State-Aid  
20.35 Highway (CSAH) 36, Cass County; thence westerly and northerly along CSAH 36 to  
20.36 STH 210; thence along STH 210 to CSAH 18, Cass County; thence along CSAH 18  
20.37 to CSAH 77, Cass County; thence along CSAH 77 to CSAH 15, Cass County; thence  
20.38 along CSAH 15 to County Road (CR) 107, Cass County; thence along CR 107 to

21.1 the city limits of Lake Shore, Cass County; thence along the south, west, and north  
21.2 boundaries of the city limits of Lake Shore to CSAH 29, Cass County; thence along  
21.3 CSAH 29 to STH 371; thence along STH 371 to STH 200; thence along STH 200 to  
21.4 STH 371; thence along STH 371 to the point of beginning.

21.5 Subp. 10. **Permit area 509.** Permit area 509 consists of that portion of the state lying  
21.6 within the following described boundary:

21.7 Beginning at the intersection of U.S. Highway 10 and the western boundary of the  
21.8 state; thence along the western boundary of the state to the northern boundary of the  
21.9 state; thence along the northern boundary of the state to State Trunk Highway (STH)  
21.10 310; thence along STH 310 to STH 89; thence along STH 89 to County State-Aid  
21.11 Highway (CSAH) 54, Marshall County; thence along CSAH 54 to a point due west  
21.12 of the northwestern corner of the Red Lake Indian Reservation; thence east to said  
21.13 corner; thence along the west boundary of the Red Lake Indian Reservation to the  
21.14 west shore of the Sandy River, Clearwater County; thence along the west shore of  
21.15 the Sandy River to Township Road (TR) 279th Avenue or Bailey's Road; thence  
21.16 along TR 279th Avenue or Bailey's Road south to TR Clover Road; thence along TR  
21.17 Clover Road to CSAH 11, Clearwater County; thence along CSAH 11 to CSAH 4,  
21.18 Clearwater County; thence along CSAH 4 to CSAH 14, Clearwater County; thence  
21.19 along CSAH 14 to CSAH 3, Clearwater County; thence along CSAH 3 to CSAH  
21.20 17, Clearwater County; thence along CSAH 17 to U.S. Highway 2; thence along  
21.21 U.S. Highway 2 to STH 92; thence along STH 92 to CSAH 27, Clearwater County;  
21.22 thence along CSAH 27 to the Mahnomen County line; thence along the Mahnomen  
21.23 County line to CSAH 3, Mahnomen County; thence along CSAH 3 to STH 113;  
21.24 thence along STH 113 to CSAH 13, Mahnomen County; thence along CSAH 13 to  
21.25 CSAH 21, Becker County; thence along CSAH 21 to CSAH 132, Becker County;  
21.26 thence along CSAH 132 to CSAH 26, Becker County; thence along CSAH 26 to U.S.  
21.27 Highway 59; thence along U.S. Highway 59 to U.S. Highway 10; thence along U.S.  
21.28 Highway 10 to the point of beginning.

21.29 Subp. 11. **Permit area 510.** Permit area 510 consists of that portion of the state lying  
21.30 within the following described boundary:

21.31 Beginning at the intersection of U.S. Highway 10 and the eastern boundary of the  
21.32 state; thence along U.S. Highway 10 to U.S. Highway 61; thence along U.S. Highway  
21.33 61 to County State-Aid Highway (CSAH) 47, Dakota County; thence along CSAH 47  
21.34 to CSAH 46, Dakota County; thence along CSAH 46 to U.S. Highway 52; thence  
21.35 along U.S. Highway 52 to CSAH 66, Dakota County; thence along CSAH 66 to State  
21.36 Trunk Highway (STH) 3; thence along STH 3 to STH 50; thence along STH 50 to  
21.37 CSAH 23, Dakota County; thence along CSAH 23 to CSAH 70, Scott County; thence

22.1 along CSAH 70 to CSAH 8, Scott County; thence along CSAH 8 to STH 13, Scott  
22.2 County; thence along STH 13 to STH 282; thence along STH 282 to CSAH 9, Scott  
22.3 County; thence along CSAH 9 to Valley View Drive, Scott County; thence along  
22.4 Valley View Drive to 195th Street, Scott County; thence along 195th Street to the east  
22.5 boundary of the Minnesota Valley State Recreation Area; thence along the east and  
22.6 north boundary of said recreation area to the east bank of the Minnesota River; thence  
22.7 along the east bank of the Minnesota River to CSAH 45, Carver County; thence along  
22.8 CSAH 45 to CSAH 50, Carver County; thence along CSAH 50 to CSAH 43, Carver  
22.9 County; thence along CSAH 43 to CSAH 11, Carver County; thence along CSAH  
22.10 11 to STH 5; thence along STH 5 to CSAH 30, Carver County; thence along CSAH  
22.11 30 to CSAH 92, Hennepin County; thence along CSAH 92 to CSAH 6, Hennepin  
22.12 County; thence along CSAH 6 to CSAH 20, Carver County; thence along CSAH 20  
22.13 to the east bank of the south fork of the Crow River; thence along the east bank of  
22.14 the south fork of the Crow River to its confluence with the Mississippi River; thence  
22.15 along the Mississippi River to U.S. Highway 169; thence along U.S. Highway 169 to  
22.16 STH 95; thence along STH 95 to the eastern boundary of the state; thence along the  
22.17 eastern boundary of the state to the point of beginning.

22.18 Subp. 12. **Permit area 511.** Permit area 511 is that portion of the state posted as the  
22.19 Carlos Avery Wildlife Management Area in Anoka and Chisago Counties.

22.20 Subp. 13. **Permit area 512.** Permit area 512 is that portion of the state posted as the  
22.21 Mille Lacs Wildlife Management Area in Mille Lacs and Kanabec Counties.

22.22 **6237.0200 PRAIRIE CHICKEN HUNT DRAWING.**

22.23 [For text of subp 1, see M.R.]

22.24 **Subp. 2. Participation in application drawings.**

22.25 [For text of items A to E, see M.R.]

22.26 F. The application deadline is the last Friday ~~in July~~ nearest August 17.

22.27 [For text of subps 3 to 6, see M.R.]

22.28 **6240.0400 TAKING RAILS.**

22.29 [For text of subp 1, see M.R.]

23.1 Subp. 2. **Daily and possession limit.** A person may not take more than 25 rails in  
23.2 aggregate per day or possess more than 25 rails in aggregate. The possession limit is as  
23.3 prescribed under federal regulations.

23.4 **6240.0610 YOUTH WATERFOWL HUNTING DAYS DAY.**

23.5 Subpart 1. **Dates, eligibility, and license requirements.** Ducks, mergansers, coots,  
23.6 moorhens, and Canada geese may be taken statewide on the Saturday nearest September  
23.7 17 Youth Waterfowl Hunting Day by resident and nonresident hunters 15 years of age  
23.8 or younger. An adult resident or nonresident mentor 18 years of age or older, who is  
23.9 authorized by the youth's parent or guardian, must accompany the youth hunter at all  
23.10 times during the hunt. The accompanying adult may not hunt. No hunting license or  
23.11 waterfowl stamps are required.

23.12 [For text of subps 2 and 3, see M.R.]

23.13 **6240.0620 WATERFOWL ZONES.**

23.14 Subpart 1. **Designation.** Zones for ducks and geese are designated and described  
23.15 as provided in this part.

23.16 Subp. 2. **North Waterfowl Zone.** The North Waterfowl Zone consists of that portion  
23.17 of the state lying north of a line beginning on Minnesota Highway 210 at the western  
23.18 boundary of the state; thence along Minnesota Highway 210 to Minnesota Highway 23;  
23.19 thence along Minnesota Highway 23 to Minnesota Highway 39; thence along Minnesota  
23.20 Highway 39 to the eastern border of the state.

23.21 Subp. 3. **South Waterfowl Zone.** The South Waterfowl Zone consists of that portion  
23.22 of the state lying south of a line extending from the South Dakota state line along U.S.  
23.23 Highway 212 to Interstate Highway 494; thence along Interstate Highway 494 to Interstate  
23.24 Highway 94; thence along Interstate Highway 94 to the Wisconsin state line.

24.1 Subp. 4. **Central Waterfowl Zone.** The Central Waterfowl Zone consists of that  
 24.2 portion of the state that is not included in the North or South Waterfowl Zone.

24.3 **6240.2000 MIGRATORY WATERFOWL FEEDING AND RESTING AREA**  
 24.4 **RESTRICTIONS.**

24.5 [For text of subps 1 and 2, see M.R.]

24.6 Subp. 3. **Disabled persons.** A disabled person, under permit from the commissioner,  
 24.7 may use an electric motor ~~of less than 30 pounds thrust~~ with battery power of 12 volts or  
 24.8 less. A permit is not required for the lakes listed in subpart 4.

24.9 [For text of subp 4, see M.R.]

24.10 **6240.2100 DESIGNATED MIGRATORY WATERFOWL FEEDING AND**  
 24.11 **RESTING AREAS.**

24.12 Subpart 1. **Designation of entire lakes.** The following lakes are designated as  
 24.13 migratory waterfowl feeding and resting areas:

| 24.14    | Name                | Location                              | County     |
|----------|---------------------|---------------------------------------|------------|
| 24.15 A. | Bakers Lake         | T.114N; R.29W                         | McLeod     |
| 24.16 B. | Bear Lake           | T.101N; R.22W                         | Freeborn   |
| 24.17 C. | Big Rice Lake       | T.140, 141N; R.26W                    | Cass       |
| 24.18 D. | Cottonwood Lake     | T.106N; R.25W                         | Blue Earth |
| 24.19 E. | Diamond Lake        | T.110N; R.23W                         | Le Sueur   |
| 24.20 F. | Dora Lake           | T.110N; R.23W                         | Le Sueur   |
| 24.21 G. | Lake Johanna        | T.123N; R.36W                         | Pope       |
| 24.22 H. | Lake Lillian        | T.117N; R.33, 34W                     | Kandiyohi  |
| 24.23 I. | Little Puposky Lake | T.149N; R.33, 34W                     | Beltrami   |
| 24.24 J. | Mud Lake            | T.131N; R.43W                         | Otter Tail |
| 24.25 K. | Mud Lake            | T.114N; R.26W                         | Sibley     |
| 24.26 L. | Nelson Lake         | T.124N; R.38W                         | Pope       |
| 24.27 M. | Oakleaf Lake        | T.110N; <del>R.26W</del> <u>R.27W</u> | Nicollet   |



|       |     |                 |                                       |            |
|-------|-----|-----------------|---------------------------------------|------------|
| 25.1  | N.  | Pleasant Lake   | T.113N; R.23W                         | Scott      |
| 25.2  | O.  | Puposky Lake    | T.149N; R.33, 34W                     | Beltrami   |
| 25.3  | P.  | Rice Lake       | T.148, 149N; R.27W                    | Itasca     |
| 25.4  | Q.  | Rice Lake       | T.111N; R.23W                         | Le Sueur   |
| 25.5  | R.  | Sanborn Lake    | T.112N; R.23W                         | Le Sueur   |
| 25.6  | S.  | Scotch Lake     | T.110N; R.25W                         | Le Sueur   |
| 25.7  | T.  | Squaw Lake      | T.148, 149N; R.27W                    | Itasca     |
| 25.8  | U.  | Tiger Lake      | T.115N; R.26W                         | Carver     |
| 25.9  | V.  | Turtle Lake     | T.148N; R.39W                         | Polk       |
| 25.10 | W.  | Unnamed Lake    | T.114N; R.29W; S.28                   | McLeod     |
| 25.11 | X.  | Upper Rice Lake | T.145N; R.36, 37W                     | Clearwater |
| 25.12 | Y.  | Wagonga Lake    | T.118, 119N; R.34, 35W                | Kandiyohi  |
| 25.13 | Z.  | Washington Lake | T.114N; R.26W                         | Sibley     |
| 25.14 | AA. | Goose Lake      | T.143N; <del>R.23W</del> <u>R.26W</u> | Cass       |
| 25.15 | BB. | Lake Henry      | T.110N; R.25W                         | Le Sueur   |
| 25.16 | CC. | Mud Lake        | T.144N; <del>R.23W</del> <u>R.26W</u> | Cass       |
| 25.17 | DD. | Thielke Lake    | T.122N; R.46W                         | Big Stone  |
| 25.18 | EE. | Upper Twin Lake | T.102N; R.22W                         | Freeborn   |

25.19 [For text of subps 2 to 9, see M.R.]

25.20 **REPEALER.** Minnesota Rules, part 6230.0250, subpart 1, is repealed. The expedited  
25.21 emergency amendments to Minnesota Rules, parts 6232.2800, subparts 5 and 6, published  
25.22 in the State Register, volume 37, page 1478, April 15, 2013; 6234.2400, subpart 2,  
25.23 published in the State Register, volume 38, page 185, August 5, 2013; 6236.0300, subpart  
25.24 2, and 6236.0810, published in the State Register, volume 38, page 791, December 2,  
25.25 2013; and 6240.0400, subpart 2, published in the State Register, volume 38, page 183,  
25.26 August 5, 2013, are repealed.